CABOT MICROELECTRONICS CORP Form 424B3 October 09, 2018

Use these links to rapidly review the document <u>TABLE OF CONTENTS</u> <u>TABLE OF CONTENTS</u>

Table of Contents

Filed pursuant to Rule 424(b)(3) Registration No. 333-227301

#### MERGER PROPOSED YOUR VOTE IS VERY IMPORTANT

October 9, 2018

Dear Shareholder:

We cordially invite you to attend a special meeting of shareholders of KMG Chemicals, Inc., a Texas corporation, to be held on November 13, 2018, at 10:00 a.m. (Central Time), at The Worthington Renaissance Fort Worth Hotel, 200 Main Street, Fort Worth, Texas 76102. As previously announced, on August 14, 2018, KMG entered into a merger agreement providing for the acquisition of KMG by Cabot Microelectronics Corporation, a Delaware corporation. At the special meeting, you will be asked to consider and vote upon a proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement.

If the merger contemplated by the merger agreement is completed, you will be entitled to receive for each share of KMG common stock, without interest (i) \$55.65 in cash and (ii) 0.2000 shares of Cabot Microelectronics common stock.

Based on the closing price of Cabot Microelectronics common stock on August 14, 2018, the last full trading day before the public announcement of the merger, the per share value of KMG common stock implied by the per share merger consideration is \$79.93. Based on the closing price of Cabot Microelectronics common stock on October 4, 2018, the most recent practicable date prior to the date of this proxy statement/prospectus, the per share value of KMG common stock implied by the per share merger consideration is \$76.06. The implied value of the per share merger consideration will fluctuate as the market price of Cabot Microelectronics common stock fluctuates because a portion of the per share merger consideration is payable in a fixed number of shares of Cabot Microelectronics common stock. As a result, the value of the per share merger consideration that KMG shareholders will receive upon completion of the merger could be greater than, less than or the same as the value of the merger consideration on the date of this proxy statement/prospectus or at the time of the KMG

special meeting. Accordingly, you should obtain current stock price quotations for Cabot Microelectronics common stock and KMG common stock before deciding how to vote with respect to approval of the merger proposal. Cabot Microelectronics common stock trades on The Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol "CCMP," and KMG common stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "KMG."

The merger cannot be completed unless KMG shareholders holding at least a majority of the shares of KMG common stock outstanding as of the close of business on October 4, 2018, the record date for the special meeting, vote in favor of the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement at the special meeting. Christopher T. Fraser, the Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer of KMG, and Fred C. Leonard III, a member of KMG's board of directors, have entered into separate voting agreements with Cabot Microelectronics, pursuant to which Mr. Fraser and Mr. Leonard have agreed to, among other matters, vote the shares of KMG common stock held by each of them, representing approximately 4.9% of the shares of KMG common stock outstanding as of the close of business on the record date and entitled to vote at the special meeting, in favor of the merger.

Your vote is very important, regardless of the number of shares you own. The merger cannot be completed unless the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement is approved by the affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of the shares of KMG common stock outstanding on the record date. A failure to vote or an abstention will have the same effect as a vote "AGAINST" the proposal to approve and adopt the merger

#### agreement.

Even if you plan to attend the special meeting in person, KMG requests that you complete, sign, date and return, as promptly as possible, the enclosed proxy card in the accompanying prepaid reply envelope or submit your proxy by telephone or over the Internet prior to the special meeting to ensure that your shares of KMG common stock will be represented at the special meeting if you are unable to attend. If you hold your shares in "street name" through a bank, brokerage firm or other nominee, you should follow the procedures provided by your bank, brokerage firm or other nominee to vote your shares.

YOUR PROXY IS BEING SOLICITED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF KMG. AFTER CAREFUL CONSIDERATION, OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS HAS UNANIMOUSLY DETERMINED THAT THE TERMS OF THE MERGER AGREEMENT AND THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED THEREBY, INCLUDING THE MERGER, ARE IN THE BEST INTERESTS OF KMG AND ITS SHAREHOLDERS AND RECOMMENDED THAT KMG SHAREHOLDERS APPROVE AND ADOPT THE MERGER AGREEMENT AND THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED THEREBY, INCLUDING THE MERGER. OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE "FOR" THE PROPOSAL TO APPROVE AND ADOPT THE MERGER AGREEMENT AND "FOR" THE OTHER PROPOSALS DESCRIBED IN THE ACCOMPANYING PROXY STATEMENT/PROSPECTUS. THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MADE ITS DETERMINATION AFTER CONSULTATION WITH ITS LEGAL AND FINANCIAL ADVISORS AND AFTER CONSIDERING A NUMBER OF FACTORS. IN CONSIDERING THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF KMG, YOU SHOULD BE AWARE THAT CERTAIN DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF KMG MAY HAVE INTERESTS IN THE MERGER THAT MAY BE DIFFERENT FROM, OR IN ADDITION TO, THE INTERESTS OF KMG SHAREHOLDERS GENERALLY. SEE THE SECTION ENTITLED "THE MERGER INTERESTS OF KMG'S DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS IN THE MERGER" BEGINNING ON PAGE 68 OF THE ACCOMPANYING PROXY STATEMENT/PROSPECTUS.

In particular, we urge you to read carefully the section entitled "Risk Factors" beginning on page 22 of the attached proxy statement/prospectus. If you have any questions regarding the accompanying proxy statement/prospectus, you may contact Okapi Partners LLC, KMG's proxy solicitor, by calling toll-free at (855) 305-0856. Banks, brokerage firms and other nominees may call collect at (212) 297-0720.

We urge you to read the accompanying proxy statement/prospectus, including the Annexes and the documents incorporated by reference, carefully and in their entirety.

On behalf of the board of directors of KMG, thank you for your consideration and continued support.

Sincerely,

Christopher T. Fraser

Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer

NEITHER THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION NOR ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION HAS APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED THE MERGER OR OTHER TRANSACTIONS DESCRIBED IN THE ACCOMPANYING PROXY STATEMENT/PROSPECTUS OR THE SECURITIES TO BE ISSUED PURSUANT TO THE MERGER UNDER THE ACCOMPANYING PROXY STATEMENT/ PROSPECTUS NOR HAVE THEY DETERMINED IF THE ACCOMPANYING PROXY STATEMENT/ PROSPECTUS IS ACCURATE OR ADEQUATE. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE.

The accompanying proxy statement/prospectus is dated October 9, 2018 and is first being mailed to KMG shareholders on or about October 10, 2018.

# **KMG CHEMICALS, INC.**

**300 Throckmorton Street** Fort Worth, Texas 76102

#### NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

October 9, 2018

Dear Shareholder:

You are cordially invited to attend a special meeting of KMG shareholders. The special meeting will be held on November 13, 2018, at 10:00 a.m. (Central Time), at The Worthington Renaissance Fort Worth Hotel, 200 Main Street, Fort Worth, Texas 76102, to consider and vote upon the following matters:

1.

a proposal to approve and adopt the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of August 14, 2018, as it may be amended from time to time, by and among KMG Chemicals, Inc., a Texas corporation, Cabot Microelectronics Corporation, a Delaware corporation, and Cobalt Merger Sub Corporation, a Texas corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of Cabot Microelectronics. A copy of the merger agreement is attached as **Annex A** to the accompanying proxy statement/prospectus;

2.

the adjournment of the special meeting, if necessary or appropriate, to solicit additional proxies if there are insufficient votes to approve the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement at the time of the special meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof; and

3.

a proposal to approve, by non-binding, advisory vote, certain compensation arrangements for KMG's named executive officers in connection with the merger contemplated by the merger agreement.

The record date for the special meeting is October 4, 2018. Only shareholders of record as of the close of business on October 4, 2018 are entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the special meeting. All shareholders of record as of that date are cordially invited to attend the special meeting in person.

Your vote is very important, regardless of the number of shares of KMG common stock that you own. The merger cannot be completed unless the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement is approved by the affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of the shares of KMG common stock outstanding on the record date. Even if you plan to attend the special meeting in person, KMG requests that you complete, sign, date and return, as promptly as possible, the enclosed proxy card in the accompanying prepaid reply envelope or submit your proxy by telephone or the Internet prior to the special meeting to ensure that your shares of KMG common stock will be represented at the special meeting if you are unable to attend. If you hold your shares in "street name" through a bank, brokerage firm or other nominee, you should follow the procedures provided by your bank, brokerage firm or other nominee to vote your shares. If you fail to submit a proxy or to attend the special meeting in person or do not provide your bank, brokerage firm or other nominee with instructions as to how to vote your shares, as applicable, your shares of KMG common stock will not be counted for purposes of determining whether a quorum is present at the special meeting and will have the same effect as a vote "AGAINST" the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement.

#### Table of Contents

Your proxy is being solicited by the board of directors of KMG. After careful consideration, our board of directors has unanimously determined that the terms of the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby, including the merger, are in the best interests of

KMG and its shareholders. OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE "FOR" THE PROPOSAL TO APPROVE AND ADOPT THE MERGER AGREEMENT AND "FOR" THE OTHER PROPOSALS DESCRIBED IN THE ACCOMPANYING PROXY STATEMENT/PROSPECTUS. THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MADE ITS DETERMINATION AFTER CONSULTATION WITH ITS LEGAL AND FINANCIAL ADVISORS AND AFTER CONSIDERING A NUMBER OF FACTORS. IN CONSIDERING THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF KMG, YOU SHOULD BE AWARE THAT CERTAIN DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF KMG MAY HAVE INTERESTS IN THE MERGER THAT MAY BE DIFFERENT FROM, OR IN ADDITION TO, THE INTERESTS OF KMG SHAREHOLDERS GENERALLY. SEE THE SECTION ENTITLED "THE MERGER INTERESTS OF KMG'S DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS IN THE MERGER" BEGINNING ON PAGE 68 OF THE ACCOMPANYING PROXY STATEMENT/PROSPECTUS.

Only KMG shareholders of record as of the close of business on the record date, their duly authorized proxy holders, beneficial owners with proof of ownership and KMG's guests may attend the special meeting. To gain admittance, please bring valid photo identification, such as a driver's license or passport. If your shares of KMG common stock are held through a bank, brokerage firm or other nominee, please bring proof of your beneficial ownership of such shares to the special meeting. Acceptable proof could include an account statement showing that you owned shares of KMG common stock on the record date. If you are the representative of a corporate or institutional shareholder, you must present valid photo identification along with proof that you are the representative of such shareholder. Please note that cameras, recording devices and other electronic devices will not be permitted at the special meeting.

KMG shareholders who do not vote in favor of the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement, and who object in writing to the merger prior to the special meeting and comply with all the requirements of the laws of the State of Texas, which are summarized in the accompanying proxy statement/prospectus and reproduced in their entirety in **Annex D** to the accompanying proxy statement/prospectus, will be entitled to dissenters' rights of appraisal to obtain the fair value of their shares of KMG common stock.

## WHETHER OR NOT YOU PLAN TO ATTEND THE SPECIAL MEETING, PLEASE COMPLETE, DATE, SIGN AND RETURN, AS PROMPTLY AS POSSIBLE, THE ENCLOSED PROXY CARD IN THE ACCOMPANYING PREPAID REPLY ENVELOPE, OR SUBMIT YOUR PROXY BY TELEPHONE OR THE INTERNET. IF YOU ATTEND THE SPECIAL MEETING AND VOTE IN PERSON, YOUR VOTE BY BALLOT WILL REVOKE ANY PROXY PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED.

If you have any questions about the special meeting, the merger, the other proposals or the accompanying proxy statement/prospectus, would like additional copies of the proxy statement/prospectus, need to obtain proxy cards or other information related to this proxy solicitation or need help submitting a proxy or voting your shares of KMG common stock, please contact KMG's proxy solicitor:

### Banks and Brokerage Firms, Please Call: (212) 297-0720 Shareholders and All Others Call Toll-Free: (855) 305-0856

By order of the Board of Directors

Christopher T. Fraser Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer October 9, 2018

## ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

This proxy statement/prospectus incorporates important business and financial information about Cabot Microelectronics Corporation ("Cabot Microelectronics") and KMG Chemicals, Inc. ("KMG") from other documents that Cabot Microelectronics and KMG have filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") and that are contained in or incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/prospectus. For a listing of documents incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/prospectus, please see the section titled "Where You Can Find More Information" beginning on page 146. This information is available for you to review at the SEC's public reference room located at 100 F Street, N.E., Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549, and through the SEC's website at www.sec.gov.

You can obtain copies of this proxy statement/prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/prospectus free of charge by requesting them in writing or by telephone at the following addresses and telephone numbers:

For Information Regarding Cabot	For Information Regarding
Microelectronics:	KMG:
Cabot Microelectronics Corporation	KMG Chemicals, Inc.
870 North Commons Drive	300 Throckmorton Street
Aurora, Illinois 60504	Fort Worth, Texas 76102
(630) 499-2600	(817) 761-6006
<b>Attention: Investor Relations</b>	<b>Attention: Investor Relations</b>

In addition, if you have questions about the special meeting, the merger, the proposals or this proxy statement/prospectus, would like additional copies of the proxy statement/prospectus, need to obtain proxy cards or other information related to the proxy solicitation or need help submitting a proxy or voting your shares of KMG common stock, you may contact Okapi Partners LLC, KMG's proxy solicitor, at the address and telephone number listed below. You will not be charged for any of these documents that you request.

Okapi Partners LLC 1212 Avenue of the Americas, 24th Floor New York, New York 10036

Banks and Brokerage Firms, Please Call: (212) 297-0720 Shareholders and All Others Call Toll-Free: (855) 305-0856

Email: info@okapipartners.com

If you would like to request any documents, please do so by November 5, 2018, which is the date that is five business days prior to the date of the special meeting, in order to receive them before the special meeting.

## Table of Contents

## ABOUT THIS PROXY STATEMENT/PROSPECTUS

This proxy statement/prospectus, which forms part of a registration statement on Form S-4 (Registration No. 333-227301) filed with the SEC by Cabot Microelectronics, constitutes a prospectus of Cabot Microelectronics under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus as the Securities Act), with respect to the Cabot Microelectronics common stock to be issued to KMG shareholders pursuant to the merger. This proxy statement/prospectus also constitutes a proxy statement for KMG under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus as the Exchange Act), and a notice of meeting with respect to the special meeting of KMG shareholders.

You should rely only on the information contained in or incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/prospectus. No one has been authorized to provide you with information that is different from that contained in, or incorporated by reference into, this proxy statement/prospectus. This proxy statement/prospectus is dated October 9, 2018, and you should assume that the information contained in this proxy statement/prospectus is accurate only as of such date. You should also assume that the information incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/prospectus is accurate only as of the date of such information.

This proxy statement/prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell, or a solicitation of an offer to buy, any securities, or the solicitation of a proxy in any jurisdiction to or from any person to whom it is unlawful to make any such offer or solicitation in such jurisdiction. Information contained in this proxy statement/prospectus regarding Cabot Microelectronics has been provided by Cabot Microelectronics, and information contained in this proxy statement/prospectus regarding KMG has been provided by KMG.

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS	<u>iv</u>
SUMMARY	<u>1</u>
The Parties	<u>1</u>
The Merger and the Merger Agreement	<u>1</u>
The Voting Agreements	<u>2</u>
Per Share Merger Consideration	<u>2</u>
KMG Special Meeting	<u>2</u>
KMG's Reasons for the Merger; Recommendation of the KMG Board of Directors	<u>5</u>
Opinion of KeyBanc Capital Markets Inc.	<u>5</u>
Interests of KMG's Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger	<u>5</u>
Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Merger	<u>6</u>
Accounting Treatment of the Merger	<u>6</u>
Regulatory Approvals Required to Complete the Merger	<u>6</u>
Litigation Relating to the Merger	7
Expected Timing of Merger	7
Treatment of KMG Equity Awards	<u>7</u>
Financing of the Merger	<u>8</u>
Listing of Cabot Microelectronics Common Stock; Delisting of KMG Common Stock	<u>8</u>
Dissenters' Rights of KMG Shareholders	<u>8</u>
No Solicitation of KMG Takeover Proposals	<u>9</u>
No Change in Recommendation or Termination for a Company Superior Proposal	<u>10</u>
Company Superior Proposals; Intervening Events	<u>10</u>
Conditions to Completion of the Merger	<u>11</u>
Termination of the Merger Agreement	$ \begin{array}{c} 1\\ 2\\ 2\\ 2\\ 2\\ 5\\ 5\\ 5\\ 6\\ 6\\ 6\\ 7\\ 7\\ 7\\ 8\\ 8\\ 8\\ 9\\ 10\\ 10\\ 11\\ 11\\ 12\\ 12\\ 12\\ 12\\ 13\\ 15\\ 17\\ \end{array} $
Expenses and Termination Fees Relating to the Merger	<u>12</u>
Comparison of Rights of Common Stockholders of Cabot Microelectronics and Common Shareholders of KMG	<u>12</u>
<u>Risk Factors</u>	<u>12</u>
SELECTED HISTORICAL CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA OF CABOT MICROELECTRONICS	<u>13</u>
SELECTED HISTORICAL CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA OF KMG	<u>15</u>
SUMMARY UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION	<u>17</u>
UNAUDITED COMPARATIVE PER SHARE INFORMATION	<u>19</u>
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	<u>20</u>
<u>RISK FACTORS</u>	<u>22</u>
Risks Relating to the Merger	<u>22</u>
Risks Relating to the Business of the Combined Company Upon Completion of the Merger	<u>28</u>
Other Risk Factors of Cabot Microelectronics and KMG	<u>31</u>
INFORMATION ABOUT KMG	<u>32</u>
KMG Chemicals, Inc.	<u>32</u>
INFORMATION ABOUT CABOT MICROELECTRONICS	<u>33</u>
Cabot Microelectronics Corporation	<u>33</u>
Cobalt Merger Sub Corporation	<u>33</u>
INFORMATION ABOUT THE KMG SPECIAL MEETING	19         20         22         28         31         32         33         33         34         34         34         34         34         34         34         34         34
Time, Place and Purpose of the Special Meeting	<u>34</u>
Record Date and Quorum	<u>34</u>
Attendance	<u>34</u>
i	

	Page
Vote Required	<u>35</u>
Proxies and Revocations	<u>36</u>
Adjournments and Postponements	<u>37</u>
Solicitation of Proxies; Payment of Solicitation Expenses	<u>38</u>
Questions and Additional Information	<u>38</u>
PROPOSAL 1: THE MERGER PROPOSAL	<u>39</u>
PROPOSAL 2: THE ADJOURNMENT PROPOSAL	<u>40</u>
PROPOSAL 3: THE COMPENSATION PROPOSAL	<u>41</u>
THE MERGER	4 <u>5</u> 4 <u>5</u>
Per Share Merger Consideration	45
Background of the Merger	46
KMG's Reasons for the Merger; Recommendation of the KMG Board of Directors	<u>51</u>
Certain Unaudited Prospective Financial Information	<u>56</u>
Opinion of KeyBanc Capital Markets Inc.	<u>59</u>
Interests of KMG's Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger	<u>68</u>
Accounting Treatment of the Merger	<u>72</u>
Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences	<u>72</u>
Financing of the Merger	<u>72</u> <u>76</u>
Regulatory Approvals	<u>76</u>
Litigation Relating to the Merger	<u>70</u> 77
Exchange of Shares	$\frac{77}{77}$
Treatment of KMG Equity Awards	<u>79</u> <u>79</u>
Dividend Policy	<u>79</u> 79
Listing of Cabot Microelectronics Common Stock; Delisting of KMG Common Stock	
THE MERGER AGREEMENT	<u>80</u>
Explanatory Note Regarding the Merger Agreement	<u>80</u>
<u>Closing: Effective Time</u>	<u>80</u>
Effect of the Merger on KMG's Capital Stock	<u>81</u>
Exchange and Payment Procedures	<u>82</u>
Treatment of KMG Equity Awards	<u>84</u>
Representations and Warranties	<u>84</u>
Conduct of Businesses of KMG and Cabot Microelectronics Prior to Completion of the Merger	<u>87</u>
No Solicitation of KMG Takeover Proposals	<u>90</u>
No Change in Recommendation or Termination for a Company Superior Proposal	<u>92</u>
Company Superior Proposals; Intervening Events	<u>92</u>
KMG Shareholder Meeting	<u>93</u>
Financing	<u>93</u>
Access to Information	<u>94</u>
Employee Matters	93 94 94 95
Indemnification and Insurance	<u>95</u>
Certain Additional Covenants	<u>95</u>
Conditions to Completion of the Merger	<u>96</u>
Regulatory Approvals	<u>97</u>
Termination of the Merger Agreement	<u>98</u>
Termination Fee	<u>98</u> <u>99</u>
Amendment and Assignment	<u>99</u>
Governing Law	<u>99</u>
Specific Enforcement; Jurisdiction	100
THE VOTING AGREEMENTS	101
ii	

	Page
OTHER MATTERS	<u>102</u>
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION	<u>103</u>
<u>NOTES TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION</u>	<u>109</u>
COMPARATIVE STOCK PRICE DATA AND DIVIDENDS	122
Stock Prices	<u>122</u>
Dividends	<u>123</u>
DESCRIPTION OF CABOT MICROELECTRONICS CAPITAL STOCK	<u>124</u>
Common Stock	<u>124</u>
Preferred Stock	<u>125</u>
Certain Effects of Authorized but Unissued Stock	<u>125</u>
Provisions of Cabot Microelectronics Charter, Cabot Microelectronics Bylaws and DGCL That May Have Anti-Takeover Effects	<u>125</u>
COMPARISON OF RIGHTS OF COMMON STOCKHOLDERS OF CABOT MICROELECTRONICS AND COMMON	
SHAREHOLDERS OF KMG	<u>127</u>
DISSENTERS' RIGHTS OF KMG SHAREHOLDERS	<u>136</u>
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT OF KMG	<u>140</u>
LEGAL MATTERS	<u>142</u>
EXPERTS	<u>143</u>
Cabot Microelectronics	<u>143</u>
KMG	<u>143</u>
KMG SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS	<u>144</u>
HOUSEHOLDING OF PROXY STATEMENT/PROSPECTUS	145
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	<u>146</u>
ANNEX A Agreement and Plan of Merger	
ANNEX B Voting Agreements	
ANNEX C Opinion of KeyBanc Capital Markets Inc. (KBCM)	
ANNEX D Chapter 10, Subchapter H of the TBOC	
iii	

## **QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS**

The following questions and answers are intended to briefly address some commonly asked questions regarding the merger, the merger agreement and the special meeting. These questions and answers may not address all questions that may be important to you as a KMG shareholder. Please refer to the section titled "Summary" beginning on page 1 and the more detailed information contained elsewhere in this proxy statement/prospectus, the annexes to this proxy statement/prospectus and the documents referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus, which you should read carefully and in their entirety. You may obtain the information incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/prospectus without charge by following the instructions under the section titled "Where You Can Find More Information" beginning on page 146.

#### Q: Why am I receiving this proxy statement/prospectus?

#### A:

KMG Chemicals, Inc. ("KMG") is sending these materials to KMG shareholders to help them decide how to vote their shares of KMG common stock with respect to the adoption of the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated August 14, 2018 (as it may be amended from time to time, the "merger agreement"), by and among Cabot Microelectronics Corporation ("Cabot Microelectronics"), KMG and Cobalt Merger Sub Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary of Cabot Microelectronics ("Merger Sub"), which agreement provides for the acquisition of KMG by Cabot Microelectronics.

This document constitutes both a proxy statement of KMG and a prospectus of Cabot Microelectronics. It is a proxy statement because KMG is soliciting proxies from its shareholders. It is a prospectus because Cabot Microelectronics will issue shares of its common stock in exchange for shares of KMG common stock in the merger if the merger is completed.

## Q: When and where is the special meeting of the KMG shareholders?

#### A:

A special meeting of KMG shareholders (the "special meeting") will be held to approve the merger on November 13, 2018, at 10:00 a.m. (Central Time), at The Worthington Renaissance Fort Worth Hotel, 200 Main Street, Fort Worth, Texas 76102.

## **Q:** What is the merger?

#### A:

KMG has agreed to be acquired by Cabot Microelectronics under the terms of the merger agreement, which is further described in this proxy statement/prospectus. If the merger agreement is approved and adopted by KMG shareholders and the other conditions to closing under the merger agreement are satisfied or waived, Merger Sub will merge with and into KMG (the "merger"), with KMG surviving the merger as a wholly owned subsidiary of Cabot Microelectronics. KMG is sometimes referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus as the surviving company.

The merger cannot be completed unless the merger proposal is approved by the affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of the shares of KMG common stock outstanding on the record date. Your failing to submit a proxy or vote in person at the special meeting, or your abstaining from voting or your failing to provide your bank, brokerage firm or other nominee with instructions on how to vote your shares, as applicable, will have the same effect as a vote against the merger proposal. The KMG board of directors unanimously recommends that shareholders vote "**FOR**" the merger proposal. This proxy statement/prospectus includes important information about the merger agreement, a copy of which is attached as **Annex A** to this proxy statement/prospectus. KMG shareholders should read this information carefully and in its entirety.



## Q: Are there any risks that I should consider in deciding whether to vote for the approval of the merger proposal?

A:

Yes. You should read and carefully consider the risk factors set forth in the section titled "Risk Factors" beginning on page 22. You also should read and carefully consider the risk factors of Cabot Microelectronics and KMG contained in the documents that are incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/prospectus.

## Q: What will KMG shareholders receive for their shares if the merger is completed?

A:

If the merger is completed, you will be entitled to receive, for each share of KMG common stock that you hold, merger consideration equal to \$55.65 in cash, plus 0.2000 shares of Cabot Microelectronics common stock (the "merger consideration"), in each case, without interest and less any applicable withholding taxes. You will receive cash in lieu of any fractional shares of Cabot Microelectronics common stock that you would otherwise be entitled to receive.

Based on the closing price of Cabot Microelectronics common stock on August 14, 2018, the last full trading day before the public announcement of the merger, the per share value of KMG common stock implied by the per share merger consideration is \$79.93. Based on the closing price of Cabot Microelectronics common stock on October 4, the most recent practicable date prior to the date of this proxy statement/prospectus, the per share value of KMG common stock implied by the per share merger consideration is \$76.06. The implied value of the per share merger consideration will fluctuate as the market price of Cabot Microelectronics common stock fluctuates because a portion of the per share merger consideration is payable in a fixed number of shares of Cabot Microelectronics common stock. As a result, the value of the per share merger consideration that KMG shareholders will receive upon completion of the merger could be greater than, less than or the same as the value of the merger consideration on the date of this proxy statement/prospectus or at the time of the KMG special meeting. Accordingly, you should obtain current stock price quotations for Cabot Microelectronics common stock trades on The Nasdaq Global Select Market (the "Nasdaq") under the symbol "CCMP," and KMG common stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange (the "NYSE") under the symbol "KMG."

For additional information regarding the consideration to be received in the merger, see the section titled "The Merger Per Share Merger Consideration" beginning on page 45.

# Q: What happens if I am eligible to receive a fraction of a share of Cabot Microelectronics common stock as part of the per share merger consideration?

## A:

If the aggregate number of shares of Cabot Microelectronics common stock that you are entitled to receive as part of the per share merger consideration otherwise would include a fraction of a share of Cabot Microelectronics common stock, you will receive cash in lieu of that fractional share. See the section titled "The Merger Exchange of Shares" beginning on page 77.

## Q: What will holders of KMG equity awards receive in the merger?

## A:

Immediately prior to the effective time of the merger (the "effective time"), each restricted stock unit award relating to shares of KMG common stock that was granted prior to August 14, 2018 and that is outstanding as of immediately prior to the effective time will fully vest (with any applicable performance metrics deemed satisfied based on the level of achievement specified in the applicable award agreement) and be cancelled and converted in exchange for the right to receive the merger consideration in respect of each share of KMG common stock underlying the applicable restricted stock unit award.



#### Table of Contents

Immediately prior to the effective time, each restricted unit award relating to shares of KMG common stock that was granted on or following August 14, 2018 and that is outstanding as of immediately prior to the effective time will be assumed by Cabot Microelectronics and converted into a restricted stock unit award (an "assumed restricted stock unit award") relating to a number of shares of Cabot Microelectronics common stock (rounded to the nearest whole share) equal to (i) the number of shares of KMG common stock subject to such KMG restricted stock unit award immediately prior to the effective time, multiplied by (ii) the "equity award exchange ratio" (defined below). The assumed restricted stock unit awards will be subject to the same terms and conditions as were applicable to the corresponding KMG equity award immediately prior to the effective time (including vesting terms). The "equity award exchange ratio" means the sum of (a) 0.2000 and (b) the quotient (rounded to four decimal places) obtained by dividing (x) \$55.65 by (y) the volume weighted average price per share (calculated to the nearest one-hundredth of one cent) of Cabot Microelectronics common stock on the Nasdaq for the consecutive period of five trading days beginning on the seventh trading day immediately preceding the effective time and concluding at the close of trading on the third trading day immediately preceding the effective time.

See "The Merger Agreement Treatment of KMG Equity Awards" beginning on page 79.

#### Q: How will I receive the merger consideration to which I am entitled?

#### A:

After receiving the proper documentation from you, following completion of the merger, the exchange agent for the merger will forward to you the Cabot Microelectronics common stock and cash to which you are entitled. More information on the documentation you are required to deliver to the exchange agent may be found in the section titled "The Merger Agreement Exchange and Payment Procedures" beginning on page 82.

## Q: What will happen to KMG as a result of the merger?

#### A:

If the merger is completed, Merger Sub will be merged with and into KMG, with KMG continuing as the surviving company and a wholly owned subsidiary of Cabot Microelectronics. As a result of the merger, KMG will no longer be a publicly held company. Following the merger, KMG common stock will be delisted from the NYSE and deregistered under the Exchange Act.

## Q: Will the Cabot Microelectronics common stock received at the time of completion of the merger be traded on an exchange?

#### A:

It is a condition to the consummation of the merger that the shares of Cabot Microelectronics common stock to be issued to KMG shareholders in the merger be approved for listing on The Nasdaq Global Select Market, subject to official notice of issuance.

## **Q:** When is the merger expected to be completed?

#### A:

Cabot Microelectronics and KMG currently expect the merger to be completed near the end of calendar year 2018, subject to receipt of required approval from KMG shareholders and subject to the satisfaction or waiver of the other conditions contained in the merger agreement. However, Cabot Microelectronics and KMG cannot predict the actual date on which the merger will be completed because completion is subject to conditions beyond their control and it is possible that such conditions could result in the merger being completed earlier, later or not at all. See the section titled "The Merger Agreement Conditions to Completion of the Merger" beginning on page 96.

## Q: What am I being asked to vote on?

#### A:

KMG shareholders are being asked to vote upon the following proposals:

1.

*Proposal 1 The Merger Proposal*: the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement, which is further described in the sections titled "The Merger" beginning on page 45 and "The Merger Agreement" beginning on page 80 and a copy of which is attached to this proxy statement/prospectus as **Annex A**;

2.

**Proposal 2** The Adjournment Proposal: the proposal to approve the adjournment of the special meeting, if necessary or appropriate, to solicit additional proxies if there are insufficient votes at the time of the special meeting (or any adjournment or postponement) to approve the merger proposal; and

3.

*Proposal 3 The Compensation Proposal*: the proposal to approve, by non-binding, advisory vote, certain compensation arrangements for KMG's named executive officers in connection with the merger.

## Q: How does the KMG board of directors recommend that I vote at the special meeting?

## A:

The KMG board of directors unanimously recommends that KMG shareholders vote "FOR" the merger proposal, "FOR" the adjournment proposal and "FOR" the compensation proposal.

## Q: What do I need to do now?

A:

After carefully reading and considering the information contained in this proxy statement/prospectus, please submit your proxy as soon as possible so that your shares of KMG common stock will be represented and voted at the special meeting. Please follow the instructions set forth on the proxy card or on the voting instruction form provided by the record holder if your shares are held in "street name" by your bank, brokerage firm or other nominee.

## Q: Should I send in my KMG stock certificates now?

## A:

No. Please DO NOT send your KMG stock certificates with your proxy card. If the merger is completed, you will receive shortly after the time the merger is completed written instructions for exchanging your stock certificates for merger consideration.

## **Q:** Who can vote at the special meeting?

## A:

Only KMG shareholders who held shares of record as of the close of business on October 4, the record date for the special meeting, are entitled to receive notice of and to vote at the special meeting. KMG's official stock ownership records will conclusively determine whether a shareholder is a "holder of record" as of the record date.

## Q: How many votes do I have?

# A:

Each KMG shareholder is entitled to one vote on each matter properly brought before the special meeting for each share of KMG common stock held of record as of the close of business on the record date. As of the close of business on the record date, there were 15,553,484 shares of KMG common stock outstanding and owned by shareholders (*i.e.*, excluding shares of KMG common stock held in treasury by KMG), held by 359 holders of record.

## Q: What constitutes a quorum for the special meeting?

A majority of the shares of KMG common stock outstanding as of the close of business on the record date and entitled to vote, present in person or represented by proxy, at the special meeting

### Table of Contents

constitutes a quorum for the purposes of the special meeting. Shares of KMG common stock represented at the special meeting but not voted, including shares of KMG common stock for which a shareholder directs an "abstention" from voting, will be counted for purposes of determining a quorum. A quorum is necessary to transact business at the special meeting. Once a share of KMG common stock is represented at the special meeting, it will be counted for the purpose of determining a quorum at the special meeting and any adjournment of the special meeting. However, if a new record date is set for the adjourned special meeting, then a new quorum will have to be determined.

## Q: What vote is required to approve each proposal to be considered at the KMG special meeting?

A:

The votes required for each proposal are as follows:

1.

**Proposal 1** The Merger Proposal: The approval of the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement requires the affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of the shares of KMG common stock outstanding on the record date.

2.

**Proposal 2** The Adjournment Proposal: The adjournment of the special meeting, if necessary or appropriate, to solicit additional proxies if there are insufficient votes at the time of the special meeting (or any adjournment or postponement) to approve the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement requires the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares of KMG common stock entitled to vote thereon and present in person or represented by proxy, whether or not a quorum is present.

3.

**Proposal 3** The Compensation Proposal: The proposal to approve, by non-binding, advisory vote, certain compensation arrangements for KMG's named executive officers in connection with the merger requires the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares of KMG common stock entitled to vote on the matter at the special meeting and present in person or represented by proxy.

As of the record date, KMG directors and executive officers, as a group, owned and were entitled to vote 1,088,049 shares of KMG common stock, or approximately 7.0% of the outstanding shares of KMG common stock. Christopher T. Fraser, the Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer of KMG, and Fred C. Leonard III, a member of KMG's board of directors, have entered into separate voting agreements with Cabot Microelectronics, pursuant to which Mr. Fraser and Mr. Leonard have agreed to, among other matters, vote the shares of KMG common stock held by each of them, representing approximately 4.9% of the shares of KMG common stock outstanding as of the close of business on the record date and entitled to vote at the special meeting, in favor of the merger.

## Q: How are proxies counted and what results from a failure to vote, abstention or broker non-vote?

A:

**Proposal 1** The Merger Proposal: Votes to abstain will not be counted as votes cast in favor of the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement, but will count for the purpose of determining whether a quorum is present. If you fail to submit a proxy or to vote in person at the special meeting, or if you vote to abstain, it will have the same effect as a vote "AGAINST" the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement.

**Proposal 2** The Adjournment Proposal: If your shares of KMG common stock are present in person at the special meeting, but are not voted on, or if you have given a proxy and abstained on, the proposal to adjourn the special meeting, if necessary or appropriate, to solicit additional proxies if there are insufficient votes at the time of the special meeting (or any adjournment or postponement) to approve the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement, this will have the same effect as if you voted "AGAINST" the adjournment of the special meeting, if necessary

#### Table of Contents

or appropriate, to solicit additional proxies if there are insufficient votes at the time of the special meeting (or any adjournment or postponement) to approve the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement. If you fail to submit a proxy or vote in person at the special meeting, or there are broker non-votes on the proposal, as applicable, the shares of KMG common stock that are not voted will not be counted in respect of, and will not have an effect on, the vote on the adjournment of the special meeting, if necessary or appropriate, to solicit additional proxies if there are insufficient votes at the time of the special meeting (or any adjournment or postponement) to approve the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement.

**Proposal 3** The Compensation Proposal: If your shares of KMG common stock are present in person at the special meeting, but are not voted on this proposal, or if you have given a proxy and abstained on this proposal, this will have the same effect as if you voted "AGAINST" the approval of the proposal. If you fail to submit a proxy or to vote in person at the special meeting, or there are broker non-votes on the proposal, as applicable, the shares of KMG common stock held by you or your bank, brokerage firm or other nominee will not be counted in respect of, and will not have an effect on, the proposal to approve, by non-binding, advisory vote, certain compensation arrangements for KMG's named executive officers in connection with the merger.

## Q: How do I vote or have my shares voted?

## A:

KMG shareholders of record may vote their shares of KMG common stock or submit a proxy to have their shares of KMG common stock voted at the special meeting in one of the following ways:

by telephone or over the Internet, by accessing the telephone number or Internet website specified on the enclosed proxy card. The control number provided on your proxy card is designed to verify your identity when voting by telephone or by Internet. Please be aware that if you vote by telephone or over the Internet, you may incur costs such as telephone and Internet access charges for which you will be responsible;

by completing, signing, dating and returning the enclosed proxy card in the accompanying prepaid reply envelope; or

in person, by attending the special meeting and casting your vote there.

If you are a beneficial owner, you will receive instructions from your bank, brokerage firm or other nominee that you must follow in order to have your shares of KMG common stock voted. Those instructions will identify which of the above choices are available to you in order to have your shares voted. Please note that if you are a beneficial owner and wish to vote in person at the special meeting, you must provide a legal proxy from your bank, brokerage firm or other nominee at the special meeting.

## **Q:** How will my proxy be voted?

A:

If you vote by proxy, regardless of the method you choose to vote, the individuals named on the enclosed proxy card, and each of them, with full power of substitution, will vote your shares of KMG common stock in the way that you indicate. When completing the Internet or telephone processes or the proxy card, you may specify whether your shares of KMG common stock should be voted for or against or to abstain from voting on all, some or none of the specific items of business to come before the special meeting.

If you properly sign your proxy card but do not mark the boxes showing how your shares of KMG common stock should be voted on a matter, the shares of KMG common stock represented by your properly signed proxy will be voted "**FOR**" the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement, "**FOR**" the adjournment of the special meeting, if necessary or appropriate, to solicit

#### Table of Contents

additional proxies if there are insufficient votes at the time of the special meeting (or any adjournment or postponement) to approve the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement, and "**FOR**" the proposal to approve, by non-binding, advisory vote, certain compensation arrangements for KMG's named executive officers in connection with the merger.

## **Q:** What must I bring to attend the special meeting?

#### A:

Only KMG shareholders of record as of the close of business on the record date, their duly authorized proxy holders, beneficial owners with proof of ownership and guests of KMG may attend the special meeting. If your shares of KMG common stock are held through a bank, brokerage firm or other nominee, please bring proof of your beneficial ownership of such shares to the special meeting. Acceptable proof could include an account statement showing that you owned shares of KMG common stock on the record date. If you are the representative of a corporate or institutional shareholder, you must present valid photo identification along with proof that you are the representative of such shareholder. Please note that cameras, recording devices and other electronic devices will not be permitted at the special meeting.

## Q: What is the difference between holding shares as a shareholder of record and in "street name"?

#### A:

If your shares of KMG common stock are registered directly in your name with the transfer agent of KMG, Broadridge Corporate Issuer Solutions, you are considered, with respect to those shares of KMG common stock, the shareholder of record. If you are a shareholder of record, this proxy statement/prospectus and the enclosed proxy card have been sent directly to you by KMG.

If your shares of KMG common stock are held through a bank, brokerage firm or other nominee, you are considered the beneficial owner of shares of KMG common stock held in "street name." In that case, this proxy statement/prospectus has been forwarded to you by your bank, brokerage firm or other nominee who is considered, with respect to those shares of KMG common stock, the shareholder of record. As the beneficial owner, you have the right to direct your bank, brokerage firm or other nominee how to vote your shares by following their instructions for voting.

# Q: If my shares are held in "street name" by my bank, brokerage firm or other nominee, will my bank, brokerage firm or other nominee vote my shares for me?

A:

Under the rules of the NYSE, banks, brokerage firms or other nominees who hold shares in "street name" for customers have the authority to vote on "routine" proposals when they have not received instructions from beneficial owners. However, banks, brokerage firms and other nominees are precluded from exercising their voting discretion with respect to approving non-routine matters such as the approval of the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement, the adjournment of the special meeting, if necessary or appropriate, to solicit additional proxies if there are insufficient votes at the time of the special meeting (or any adjournment or postponement) to approve the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement, and the proposal to approve, by non-binding, advisory vote, certain compensation arrangements for KMG's named executive officers in connection with the merger. As a result, absent specific instructions from the beneficial owner of such shares of KMG common stock, banks, brokerage firms and other nominees are not empowered to vote those shares of KMG common stock on non-routine matters. These broker non-votes will have the same effect as a vote "AGAINST" the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement, but will not be counted in respect of, and will not have an effect on, the vote on the adjournment of the special meeting, if necessary or appropriate, to solicit additional proxies if there are insufficient votes at the time of the special meeting (or any adjournment) to approve the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement, but will not be counted in respect of, and will not have an effect on, the vote on the adjournment of the special meeting, if necessary or appropriate, to solicit additional proxies if there are insufficient votes at the time of the special meeting (or any adjournment) to approve the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement, but will not be counted in respect of, and will not have an effect on, the vote on the adjournment of the special meeting, if

X

## Table of Contents

## Q: What should I do if I receive more than one set of voting materials for the special meeting?

A:

You may receive more than one set of voting materials for the special meeting, including multiple copies of this proxy statement/prospectus and multiple proxy cards or voting instruction cards. For example, if you hold your KMG common stock in more than one brokerage account, you will receive a separate voting instruction card for each brokerage account in which you hold shares. If you are a shareholder of record and your shares are registered in more than one name, you will receive more than one proxy card. Please submit each separate proxy or voting instruction card that you receive by following the instructions set forth in each separate proxy or voting instruction card.

## Q: What do I do if I am a KMG shareholder and I want to revoke my proxy?

#### A:

You have the right to revoke a proxy, whether delivered over the Internet, by telephone or by mail, at any time before it is exercised, by voting again at a later date through any of the methods available to you, by attending the special meeting and voting in person, or by giving written notice of revocation to KMG prior to the time the special meeting begins. Written notice of revocation should be mailed to: KMG Chemicals, Inc., Attention: Corporate Secretary, 300 Throckmorton Street, Fort Worth, Texas 76102.

## Q: What happens if I sell my shares of KMG common stock before the special meeting?

## A:

The record date is earlier than both the date of the special meeting and the closing of the merger. If you transfer your shares of KMG common stock after the record date but before the special meeting, you will, unless the transferee requests a proxy from you, retain your right to vote at the special meeting but will transfer the right to receive the per share merger consideration to the person to whom you transfer your shares. In order to receive the merger consideration, you must hold your shares upon completion of the merger.

## Q: Do KMG shareholders have dissenters' rights?

A:

Yes. KMG shareholders are entitled to dissenters' rights under Chapter 10, Subchapter H of the Texas Business Organizations Code (the "TBOC"), provided they (i) do not vote in favor of the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement, (ii) object in writing to the merger prior to the special meeting and (iii) follow the procedures and satisfy the conditions set forth in Chapter 10, Subchapter H of the TBOC. For more information regarding dissenters' rights, see the section titled "Dissenters' Rights of KMG Shareholders" beginning on page 136. In addition, a copy of Chapter 10, Subchapter H of the TBOC is attached as **Annex D** to this proxy statement/prospectus. Failure to strictly comply with Chapter 10, Subchapter H of the TBOC may result in your waiver of, or inability to, exercise dissenters' rights.

## Q: Who will solicit and pay the cost of soliciting proxies?

A:

KMG has engaged Okapi Partners LLC to assist in the solicitation of proxies for the special meeting. KMG estimates that it will pay Okapi Partners LLC a fee of \$30,000 plus an additional fee of \$5.00 per incoming and outgoing telephone contact and telephonic votes received. KMG has agreed to reimburse Okapi Partners LLC for certain out-of-pocket fees and expenses and also will indemnify Okapi Partners LLC against certain claims, costs, damages, liabilities, judgments and expenses. KMG also may reimburse banks, brokerage firms, other nominees or their respective agents for their expenses in forwarding proxy materials to beneficial owners of KMG common stock. KMG's directors, officers and employees also may solicit proxies by telephone, by facsimile, by mail, on the Internet or in person. They will not be paid any additional amounts for soliciting proxies.

xi

## Table of Contents

## Q: How can I find more information about Cabot Microelectronics and KMG?

A:

You can find more information about Cabot Microelectronics and KMG from various sources described in the section titled "Where You Can Find More Information" beginning on page 146.

#### Q: Who can answer any questions I may have about the special meeting or the proxy materials?

## A:

If you have additional questions about the merger, need assistance in submitting your proxy or voting your shares of KMG common stock or need additional copies of this proxy statement/prospectus or the enclosed proxy card, please contact:

Okapi Partners LLC 1212 Avenue of the Americas, 24th Floor New York, New York 10036 Banks and Brokerage Firms, Please Call: (212) 297-0720 Shareholders and All Others Call Toll-Free: (855) 305-0856

Email: info@okapipartners.com

xii

#### SUMMARY

The following summary highlights selected information described in more detail elsewhere in this proxy statement/prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/prospectus and may not contain all the information that may be important to you. To understand the merger and the matters being voted on by KMG shareholders at the special meeting more fully, and to obtain a more complete description of the legal terms of the merger agreement, you should carefully read this entire proxy statement/prospectus, including the annexes, and the documents to which Cabot Microelectronics and KMG refer you. Each item in this summary includes a page reference directing you to a more complete description of that topic. See "Where You Can Find More Information" beginning on page 146.

#### The Parties (see pages 32 and 33)

#### KMG Chemicals, Inc.

KMG Chemicals, Inc., a Texas corporation, is headquartered in Fort Worth, Texas. From its facilities in North America, Europe and Asia, KMG produces and distributes specialty chemicals and performance materials for the semiconductor, industrial wood preservation and pipeline and energy markets. KMG common stock trades on the NYSE under the symbol "KMG." The principal executive offices of KMG are located at 300 Throckmorton Street, Fort Worth, Texas 76102, and its telephone number is (817) 761-6100.

#### **Cabot Microelectronics Corporation**

Cabot Microelectronics Corporation, a Delaware corporation, is the leading supplier of high-performance polishing slurries and second largest supplier of polishing pads used in the manufacture of advanced integrated circuit (IC) devices within the semiconductor industry, in a process called chemical mechanical planarization (CMP). CMP is a polishing process used by IC device manufacturers to planarize or flatten many of the multiple layers of material that are deposited upon silicon wafers in the production of advanced ICs. Cabot Microelectronics' products play a critical role in the production of advanced semiconductor devices, helping to enable its customers to produce smaller, faster and more complex IC devices with fewer defects. Cabot Microelectronics' mission is to create value by delivering high-performing and innovative solutions that solve its customers' challenges. Cabot Microelectronics common stock trades on the Nasdaq under the symbol "CCMP." The principal executive offices of Cabot Microelectronics are located at 870 North Commons Drive, Aurora, Illinois 60504, and its telephone number is (630) 375-6631.

## Cobalt Merger Sub Corporation

Cobalt Merger Sub Corporation, a Texas corporation and referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus as Merger Sub, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Cabot Microelectronics. Merger Sub was formed by Cabot Microelectronics solely in contemplation of the merger, has not conducted any business and has no assets, liabilities or obligations of any nature other than as set forth in the merger agreement. The principal executive offices of Merger Sub are located at c/o Cabot Microelectronics Corporation, 870 North Commons Drive, Aurora, Illinois 60504, and its telephone number is (630) 375-6631.

## The Merger and the Merger Agreement (see pages 45 and 80)

The terms and conditions of the merger are contained in the merger agreement, a copy of which is attached as **Annex A** to this proxy statement/prospectus. KMG and Cabot Microelectronics encourage you to read the merger agreement carefully and in its entirety, as it is the legal document that governs the merger.

## Table of Contents

The merger agreement provides that, subject to the terms and conditions of the merger agreement, Merger Sub will be merged with and into KMG, with KMG surviving the merger as a wholly owned subsidiary of Cabot Microelectronics.

#### The Voting Agreements (see page 101)

In connection with the merger agreement, Cabot Microelectronics entered into voting agreements with Christopher T. Fraser and Fred C. Leonard III, copies of which are attached as **Annex B** to this proxy statement/prospectus. Pursuant to the voting agreements, each of Messrs. Fraser and Leonard has agreed to vote their shares of KMG common stock in favor of the merger agreement, subject to certain exceptions. As of the record date, Messrs. Fraser and Leonard collectively owned and were entitled to vote 754,554 shares of KMG common stock, or approximately 4.9% of the outstanding shares of KMG common stock.

#### Per Share Merger Consideration (see page 45)

Upon completion of the merger, each issued and outstanding share of KMG common stock (other than shares (i) held in treasury by KMG or owned by Cabot Microelectronics or Merger Sub (which will be cancelled), (ii) owned by any direct or indirect wholly owned subsidiary of KMG or Cabot Microelectronics (other than Merger Sub) (which will be converted into shares of the surviving company), (iii) owned by shareholders that have complied with the applicable provisions of Chapter 10, Subchapter H of the TBOC, or (iv) underlying KMG restricted stock awards granted after August 14, 2018) will be converted into the right to receive \$55.65 in cash, plus 0.2000 shares of Cabot Microelectronics common stock, in each case, without interest and less any applicable withholding taxes. Each KMG shareholder who would otherwise have been entitled to receive a fractional share of Cabot Microelectronics common stock in the merger will instead receive a cash payment in lieu of such fractional share.

Based on the closing price of Cabot Microelectronics common stock on August 14, 2018, the last full trading day before the public announcement of the merger, the per share value of KMG common stock implied by the per share merger consideration is \$79.93. Based on the closing price of Cabot Microelectronics common stock on October 4, the most recent practicable date prior to the date of this proxy statement/prospectus, the per share value of KMG common stock implied by the per share merger consideration is \$76.06. The implied value of the per share merger consideration will fluctuate as the market price of Cabot Microelectronics common stock fluctuates because a portion of the per share merger consideration is payable in a fixed number of shares of Cabot Microelectronics common stock. As a result, the value of the per share merger consideration on the date of this proxy statement/prospectus or at the time of the KMG special meeting. Accordingly, you should obtain current stock price quotations for Cabot Microelectronics common stock and KMG common stock before deciding how to vote with respect to approval of the merger proposal. Cabot Microelectronics common stock trades on the NySE under the symbol "KMG."

#### KMG Special Meeting (see page 34)

#### Time, Place and Purpose of the Special Meeting

The special meeting to consider and vote upon the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement will be held on November 13, 2018, at 10:00 a.m. (Central Time), at The Worthington Renaissance Fort Worth Hotel, 200 Main Street, Fort Worth, Texas 76102.

At the special meeting, KMG shareholders will be asked to consider and vote upon (i) a proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement, (ii) the adjournment of the special meeting, if necessary

### Table of Contents

or appropriate, to solicit additional proxies if there are insufficient votes at the time of the special meeting (or any adjournment or postponement) to approve the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement and (iii) a proposal to approve, by non-binding, advisory vote, certain compensation arrangements for KMG's named executive officers in connection with the merger.

#### **Record Date and Quorum**

You are entitled to receive notice of, and to vote at, the special meeting if you owned shares of KMG common stock as of the close of business on October 4, 2018, the record date. On the record date, there were 15,553,484 shares of KMG common stock outstanding and entitled to vote. You will have one vote on all matters properly coming before the special meeting for each share of KMG common stock that you owned on the record date.

A majority of the shares of KMG common stock outstanding as of the close of business on the record date and entitled to vote, present in person or represented by proxy, at the special meeting constitutes a quorum for the purposes of the special meeting. Shares of KMG common stock represented at the special meeting but not voted, including shares of KMG common stock for which a shareholder directs an "abstention" from voting, will be counted for purposes of determining a quorum. A quorum is necessary to transact business at the special meeting. Once a share of KMG common stock is represented at the special meeting, it will be counted for the purpose of determining a quorum at the special meeting and any adjournment of the special meeting. However, if a new record date is set for the adjourned special meeting, then a new quorum will have to be determined.

#### **Required Vote**

The approval of the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement requires the affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of the shares of KMG common stock outstanding on the record date. Votes to abstain will not be counted as votes cast in favor of the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement, but will count for the purpose of determining whether a quorum is present. If you fail to submit a proxy or to vote in person at the special meeting, or if you vote to abstain, it will have the same effect as a vote "AGAINST" the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement.

Approval of the adjournment of the special meeting, if necessary or appropriate, to solicit additional proxies if there are insufficient votes at the time of the special meeting (or any adjournment or postponement) to approve the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement will require the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares of KMG common stock entitled to vote thereon and present in person or represented by proxy, whether or not a quorum is present. For purposes of the vote on the adjournment of the special meeting, if necessary or appropriate, to solicit additional proxies if there are insufficient votes at the time of the special meeting (or any adjournment or postponement) to approve the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement, if your shares of KMG common stock are present in person at the special meeting but are not voted on, or if you have given a proxy and abstained on, the adjournment of the special meeting, if necessary or appropriate, to solicit additional proxies if there are insufficient votes at the time of the special meeting (or any adjournment) to approve the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement, if your shares of KMG common stock are present in person at the special meeting but are not voted on, or if you have given a proxy and abstained on, the adjournment of the special meeting, if necessary or appropriate, to solicit additional proxies if there are insufficient votes at the time of the special meeting (or any adjournment) to approve the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement, this will have the same effect as if you voted "AGAINST" the adjournment of the special meeting (or any adjournment or postponement) to approve the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement. If you fail to submit a proxy or vote in person at the special meeting, or there are broker non-votes on the issue, as applicable, the s



#### Table of Contents

insufficient votes at the time of the special meeting (or any adjournment or postponement) to approve the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement.

The approval of the proposal to approve, by non-binding, advisory vote, certain compensation arrangements for KMG's named executive officers in connection with the merger requires the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares of KMG common stock entitled to vote on the matter at the special meeting and present in person or represented by proxy. For purposes of the proposal, if your shares of KMG common stock are present in person at the special meeting but are not voted on this proposal, or if you have given a proxy and abstained on this proposal, this will have the same effect as if you voted "AGAINST" the approval of the proposal. If you fail to submit a proxy or to vote in person at the special meeting, or there are broker non-votes on the issue, as applicable, the shares of KMG common stock held by you or your bank, brokerage firm or other nominee will not be counted in respect of, and will not have an effect on, the proposal to approve, by non-binding, advisory vote, certain compensation arrangements for KMG's named executive officers in connection with the merger.

As of the record date, the directors and executive officers of KMG were entitled to vote, in the aggregate, 1,088,049 shares of KMG common stock, representing 7.0% of the outstanding shares of KMG common stock as of the close of business on the record date. The directors and executive officers of KMG have informed KMG that they currently intend to vote all such shares of KMG common stock "FOR" the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement, "FOR" the adjournment of the special meeting, if necessary or appropriate, to solicit additional proxies if there are insufficient votes at the time of the special meeting (or any adjournment or postponement) to approve the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement and "FOR" the proposal to approve, by non-binding, advisory vote, certain compensation arrangements for KMG's named executive officers in connection with the merger.

#### **Proxies and Revocations**

Any shareholder of record entitled to vote at the special meeting may submit a proxy by telephone, over the Internet, by returning the enclosed proxy card in the accompanying prepaid reply envelope or may vote in person by appearing at the special meeting. If your shares of KMG common stock are held in "street name" through a bank, brokerage firm or other nominee, you should instruct your bank, brokerage firm or other nominee on how to vote your shares of KMG common stock using the instructions provided by your bank, brokerage firm or other nominee. If you fail to submit a proxy or to vote in person at the special meeting, or do not provide your bank, brokerage firm or other nominee with instructions as to how to vote your shares, as applicable, your shares of KMG common stock will not be voted on the approval of the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement, which will have the same effect as a vote "AGAINST" the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement, or on the proposal to approve the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement or on the proposal to approve, by non-binding, advisory vote, certain compensation arrangements for KMG's named executive officers in connection with the merger. Please note that if you are a beneficial owner and wish to vote in person at the special meeting, you must provide a legal proxy from your bank, brokerage firm or other nominee at the special meeting.

You have the right to revoke a proxy, whether delivered by telephone, over the Internet or by mail, at any time before it is exercised, by voting again at a later date through any of the methods available to you, by attending the special meeting and voting in person, or by giving written notice of revocation to KMG prior to the time the special meeting begins. Written notice of revocation should be mailed to: KMG Chemicals, Inc., Attention: Corporate Secretary, 300 Throckmorton Street, Fort Worth, Texas 76102.

## Table of Contents

## KMG's Reasons for the Merger; Recommendation of the KMG Board of Directors (see page 51)

After careful evaluation of the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby, including the merger, the KMG board of directors unanimously determined that the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby, including the merger, are in the best interests of KMG and its shareholders and approved and declared advisable the merger agreement and the other transactions contemplated thereby, including the merger.

The KMG board of directors unanimously recommends that KMG shareholders vote "FOR" the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement, "FOR" the adjournment of the special meeting, if necessary or appropriate, to solicit additional proxies if there are insufficient votes at the time of the special meeting (or any adjournment or postponement) to approve the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement and "FOR" the proposal to approve, by non-binding, advisory vote, certain compensation arrangements for KMG's named executive officers in connection with the merger.

In the course of reaching its recommendation, the KMG board of directors consulted with KMG's senior management and financial advisor, KeyBanc Capital Markets Inc. ("KBCM") and outside legal counsel and considered a number of factors. See "The Merger KMG's Reasons for the Merger; Recommendation of the KMG Board of Directors" beginning on page 51.

#### Opinion of KeyBanc Capital Markets Inc. (KBCM) (see page 59)

KBCM was retained by the KMG board of directors to act as financial advisor in connection with the merger. On August 14, 2018, KBCM rendered its oral opinion, which was subsequently confirmed in a written opinion dated August 14, 2018, to the KMG board of directors to the effect that, as of such date, and based upon and subject to the assumptions made, procedures followed, matters considered and qualifications and limitations on the scope of review undertaken by KBCM as set forth in its written opinion, the merger consideration to be paid to the holders of KMG common stock pursuant to the merger agreement was fair from a financial point of view to such holders of KMG common stock.

#### The full text of KBMC's written opinion to the KMG board of directors, dated August 14, 2018, is attached to this proxy

statement/prospectus as **Annex C** and is incorporated by reference herein. The written opinion sets forth, among other things, the assumptions made, procedures followed, matters considered and limitations and qualifications of the review undertaken by KBMC in rendering its opinion. You should read the written opinion carefully in its entirety. The opinion was provided to the KMG board of directors and addresses only, as of the date of the written opinion, the fairness, from a financial point of view, of the merger consideration to be paid to the holders of the KMG common stock pursuant to the merger agreement, and it does not address any other aspect of the proposed transaction. It does not constitute a recommendation as to how any shareholder should vote with respect to the merger or any other matter, and does not in any manner address the price at which the KMG common stock or Cabot Microelectronics common stock will trade at any future time. The summary of the written opinion set forth herein is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the written opinion. See the section entitled "The Merger Opinion of KeyBanc Capital Markets Inc. (KBCM)" beginning on page 59 of this proxy statement/prospectus.

#### Interests of KMG's Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger (see page 68)

The directors and executive officers of KMG may have interests in the merger that are different from or in addition to those of KMG shareholders generally. These interests include the continued employment of certain executive officers of KMG, the treatment in the merger of performance-based and time-based awards granted under any agreement, which we refer to as KMG equity awards, annual bonus and retention bonus awards, employment agreements, the executive severance plan and other rights held by KMG's directors and executive officers, and the indemnification of former KMG

### Table of Contents

directors and officers by Cabot Microelectronics. The KMG board was aware of and considered these interests when it declared advisable the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby, including the merger and the voting agreements, determined that the terms of the merger agreement, and the transactions contemplated by the merger agreement, including the merger, were in the best interests of KMG and its shareholders, and recommended that KMG shareholders approve and adopt the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby, including the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby, including the merger agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby, including the merger. See the sections entitled "The Merger Interests of KMG's Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger" beginning on page 68 of this proxy statement/prospectus and "Proposal 3: The Compensation Proposal" beginning on page 41 of this proxy statement/prospectus.

## Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Merger (see page 72)

The receipt of cash and shares of Cabot Microelectronics common stock pursuant to the merger will be a taxable transaction for U.S. federal income tax purposes. For U.S. federal income tax purposes, a U.S. holder (as defined below in the section titled "The Merger Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences" beginning on page 72) will generally recognize gain or loss equal to the difference, if any, between (i) the sum of the cash and the fair market value (as of the effective time) of the Cabot Microelectronics common stock received in the merger and (ii) the U.S. holder's adjusted tax basis in the KMG common stock surrendered in exchange therefor. Non-U.S. holders (as defined below in the section titled "The Merger Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences" beginning on page 72) that receive the per share merger consideration pursuant to the merger may be subject to U.S. withholding tax with respect to any cash received.

Each holder of KMG common stock should read the discussion under "The Merger Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences" beginning on page 72 for a more complete discussion of the U.S. federal income tax consequences of the merger. Tax matters can be complicated, and the tax consequences of the merger to a particular holder of KMG common stock will depend on such holder's particular facts and circumstances. Holders of KMG common stock should consult their own tax advisors to determine the specific consequences to them of exchanging their shares of KMG common stock for cash and shares of Cabot Microelectronics common stock pursuant to the merger.

## Accounting Treatment of the Merger (see page 72)

Cabot Microelectronics prepares its financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (referred to in this proxy statement/prospectus as GAAP). The merger will be accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting. Cabot Microelectronics will be treated as the acquirer for accounting purposes.

## Regulatory Approvals Required to Complete the Merger (see pages 76 and 97)

Under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976 (as amended, the "HSR Act"), and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder by the Federal Trade Commission (the "FTC"), the merger cannot be consummated until notifications have been submitted and certain information has been furnished to the Antitrust Division of the U.S. Department of Justice (the "Antitrust Division") and the FTC, and specified waiting period requirements have been satisfied. Cabot Microelectronics and KMG each filed a pre-merger notification and report form pursuant to the HSR Act with the Antitrust Division and the FTC on August 23, 2018. On September 4, 2018, Cabot Microelectronics and KMG each received notice that the FTC granted early termination of the applicable waiting period under the HSR Act. Accordingly, the regulatory condition relating to the expiration or termination of the waiting period (and any extension thereof) under the HSR Act in respect of the merger has been satisfied.

## Table of Contents

Cabot Microelectronics and KMG have agreed to use reasonable best efforts to obtain as promptly as reasonably practicable any consents and approvals of, or the expiration of waiting periods applicable to, any third party, including any governmental entity, necessary, proper or advisable in connection with the merger, subject to limitations as set forth in the merger agreement. See "The Merger Agreement Regulatory Approvals" beginning on page 97 of this proxy statement/prospectus.

## Litigation Relating to the Merger (see page 77)

On September 24, 2018, a putative shareholder class action was filed in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Texas styled *Richard Walter, individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated, v. KMG Chemicals, Inc., et. al.,* No. 4:18-cv-00785 (the "Walter Lawsuit"). The Walter Lawsuit asserts claims for alleged violation of Section 14(a) of the Exchange Act based on allegations that this proxy statement/prospectus is materially incomplete and misleading. On October 5, 2018, a putative shareholder class and derivative action was filed in the District Court of the State of Texas for Tarrant County styled *Jordan Rosenblatt, individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated, v. Christopher T. Fraser et al.,* No. 342-303508-18 (the "Rosenblatt Lawsuit"). The Rosenblatt Lawsuit purports to assert direct and derivative claims for breaches of fiduciary duties against the KMG board of directors and for aiding and abetting those breaches of fiduciary duties are without merit.

## **Expected Timing of Merger**

Cabot Microelectronics and KMG currently expect the merger to be completed near the end of calendar year 2018, subject to receipt of required approval from KMG shareholders and subject to the satisfaction or waiver of the other conditions contained in the merger agreement. However, Cabot Microelectronics and KMG cannot predict the actual date on which the merger will be completed because completion is subject to conditions beyond their control and it is possible that such conditions could result in the merger being completed earlier, later or not at all, as described in more detail in the section titled "The Merger Agreement Conditions to Completion of the Merger" beginning on page 96.

#### Treatment of KMG Equity Awards (see pages 79 and 84)

Immediately prior to the effective time, each restricted stock unit award relating to shares of KMG common stock that was granted prior to August 14, 2018 and that is outstanding as of immediately prior to the effective time will fully vest (with any applicable performance metrics deemed satisfied based on the level of achievement specified in the applicable award agreement) and be cancelled and converted in exchange for the right to receive the merger consideration in respect of each share of KMG common stock underlying the applicable restricted stock unit award.

Immediately prior to the effective time, each restricted unit award relating to shares of KMG common stock that was granted on or following August 14, 2018 and that is outstanding as of immediately prior to the effective time will be assumed by Cabot Microelectronics and converted into a restricted stock unit award relating to a number of shares of Cabot Microelectronics common stock (rounded to the nearest whole share) equal to (i) the number of shares of KMG common stock subject to such KMG restricted stock unit award immediately prior to the effective time, multiplied by (ii) the "equity award exchange ratio" (defined below). The assumed restricted stock unit awards will be subject to the same terms and conditions as were applicable to the corresponding KMG equity award immediately prior to the effective time (including vesting terms). The "equity award exchange ratio" means the sum of (a) 0.2000 and (b) the quotient (rounded to four decimal places) obtained by dividing (x) \$55.65 by (y) the volume weighted average price per share (calculated to the nearest one-hundredth of one cent) of Cabot Microelectronics common stock on the Nasdaq for the



## Table of Contents

consecutive period of five trading days beginning on the seventh trading day immediately preceding the effective time and concluding at the close of trading on the third trading day immediately preceding the effective time.

#### Financing of the Merger (see pages 76 and 93)

Consummation of the merger is not conditioned upon Cabot Microelectronics' ability to obtain financing. Cabot Microelectronics expects to use cash on hand and debt financing to fund the cash component of the merger consideration.

In connection with the execution of the merger agreement, Cabot Microelectronics entered into a commitment letter, dated as of August 14, 2018 (the "commitment letter"), with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., Bank of America, N.A., Goldman Sachs Bank USA and Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated (together, the "commitment parties"), pursuant to which the commitment parties have committed to arrange and provide, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the commitment letter, a senior secured revolving credit facility in an aggregate principal amount of up to \$200,000,000 (the "revolver") and a senior secured term loan facility in an aggregate principal amount of up to \$1,065,000,000 (the "term loan").

Prior to or simultaneously with the consummation of the merger, Cabot Microelectronics expects to execute definitive documentation with respect to the revolver and term loan on the terms set forth in the commitment letter. The proceeds of the term loan and, subject to certain limitations, the revolver may be used to finance the merger, repay certain existing indebtedness of Cabot Microelectronics and KMG, to pay fees and expenses related to the merger and for general corporate purposes.

#### Listing of Cabot Microelectronics Common Stock; Delisting of KMG Common Stock (see page 79)

It is a condition to the consummation of the merger that the shares of Cabot Microelectronics common stock to be issued to KMG shareholders in the merger be approved for listing on the Nasdaq, subject to official notice of issuance. As a result of the merger, shares of KMG common stock will cease to be listed on the NYSE.

## Dissenters' Rights of KMG Shareholders (see page 136)

The holders of KMG common stock have the right under Texas law to dissent from the merger and have the appraised fair value of their shares of KMG common stock as of the date immediately preceding the effective date of the merger paid to them in cash. The appraised fair value of any particular number of shares of KMG common stock as of such date may be more or less than the value of the merger consideration that a holder of that particular number of shares of KMG common stock would be issued in the merger in exchange for that particular number of shares of KMG common stock would be issued in the merger in exchange for that particular number of shares of KMG common stock would be issued in the merger in exchange for that particular number of shares of KMG common stock would be issued in the merger in exchange for that particular number of shares of KMG common stock would be issued in the merger in exchange for that particular number of shares of KMG common stock would be issued in the merger in exchange for that particular number of shares of KMG common stock would be issued in the merger in exchange for that particular number of shares of KMG common stock pursuant to the merger agreement.

In order to dissent, the holder of KMG common stock must carefully follow the requirements under Chapter 10, Subchapter H of the TBOC governing dissenters' rights, including providing KMG, prior to the KMG special meeting, with a written objection to the merger that states that he or she will exercise his or her right to dissent with respect to his or her shares of KMG common stock if the holders of the KMG common stock approve and adopt the merger agreement and the merger is completed. The provisions of the TBOC pertaining to dissenters' rights are attached to this proxy statement/prospectus as **Annex D** and the summaries of those provisions in this proxy statement/prospectus should be read in conjunction with, and are qualified in their entirety by, those provisions of the TBOC. Persons having beneficial interests in KMG common stock held of record in the name of another person, such as a broker, bank or other nominee, must act promptly to cause the record holder to take the actions required under Texas law to exercise their dissenter's rights.

## Table of Contents

If you intend to exercise dissenters' rights as to shares of KMG common stock that you hold, you should read the provisions of the TBOC governing dissenters' rights carefully and consult with your own legal counsel. Each holder of KMG common stock should also remember that if he or she returns a signed proxy card, but fails to provide instructions on that proxy card as to how his or her shares of KMG common stock are to be voted against the approval of the merger agreement and the merger, such KMG shareholder's shares of KMG common stock will be considered to have voted in favor of the merger agreement and the merger. In that event, such KMG shareholder will not be able to assert dissenters' rights as to his or her shares of KMG common stock.

If the KMG shareholders approve and adopt the merger agreement, a holder of KMG common stock who (i) delivers to the president and the secretary of KMG a written objection to the merger prior to the KMG special meeting that states that such holder will exercise his or her right to dissent if the merger agreement and the merger are approved and the merger is completed and includes an address for notice of the effectiveness of the merger, (ii) votes his or her shares of KMG common stock against approval of the merger agreement and the merger are at the KMG special meeting, (iii) not later than the 20th day after Cabot Microelectronics sends such holder notice that the merger was completed, delivers to the president and secretary of Cabot Microelectronics a written demand for payment of the fair value of his or her shares of KMG common stock and states the number of shares of KMG common stock such holder owns, his or her estimate of the fair value of such shares and an address to which a notice relating to the dissent and appraisal procedures may be sent, and (iv) not later than the 20th day after he or she makes that demand for payment, submits to Cabot Microelectronics the certificates representing his or her shares of KMG common stock will be entitled under the TBOC to receive the appraised fair value of his or her shares of KMG common stock will be entitled under the TBOC to receive the appraised fair value of his or her shares of KMG common stock will be entitled under the TBOC to receive the appraised fair value of his or her shares of KMG common stock as of the date immediately prior to the effective time of the merger.

#### No Solicitation of KMG Takeover Proposals (see page 90)

As more fully described in this proxy statement/prospectus and in the merger agreement, and subject to the exceptions summarized below, KMG has agreed that it will not (i) solicit, initiate or knowingly encourage or knowingly facilitate any inquiry regarding, or the making of any proposal or offer that constitutes, or would reasonably be expected to lead to, a KMG takeover proposal (as defined on page 90), (ii) engage in, continue or otherwise participate in any discussions or negotiations, or furnish to any other person any information in connection with a KMG takeover proposal or (iii) approve, adopt, recommend or enter into (or propose to do any of the foregoing) any letter of intent, agreement or commitment with respect to a KMG takeover proposal.

Notwithstanding the foregoing restrictions, if at any time prior to obtaining the approval of the KMG shareholders of the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement, KMG receives a written, bona fide, unsolicited takeover proposal that did not result from a material breach of KMG's non-solicitation obligations, KMG may (i) furnish information with respect to KMG to the party making the KMG takeover proposal (subject to certain conditions and obligations described below) and (ii) engage in discussions or negotiations with the party making such KMG takeover proposal, if, and only if, the KMG board of directors determines in good faith, after consultation with its independent financial advisor and outside legal counsel, that the KMG takeover proposal constitutes or would reasonably be expected to lead to a KMG superior proposal (as defined on page 91) and that the failure to take such action would be inconsistent with the KMG board of directors' fiduciary duties under applicable law.

KMG agreed to promptly (and in any event within 24 hours) notify Cabot Microelectronics if the KMG board of directors makes a determination that a KMG takeover proposal constitutes or is reasonably expected to lead to a KMG superior proposal or if KMG furnishes nonpublic information and/or enters into discussions or negotiations with a person making a KMG takeover proposal.

#### Table of Contents

KMG also agreed to promptly (and in any event within 24 hours after, to the knowledge of KMG, its receipt) notify Cabot Microelectronics of the receipt of a KMG takeover proposal or any request for information relating to KMG or other inquiry or communication that is reasonably likely to lead to a KMG takeover proposal. Such notice must include the identity of the person or persons making the KMG takeover proposal (or the related proposal or inquiry) and the material terms thereof. Further, after giving such a notice, KMG must keep Cabot Microelectronics reasonably informed, on a current basis, as to the status of any KMG takeover proposal (including any material developments, discussions or negotiations related thereto) by promptly (and in any event within 24 hours after receipt) providing Cabot Microelectronics copies of any correspondence, proposals, indications of interest, and/or draft agreements relating to such KMG takeover proposal.

#### No Change in Recommendation or Termination for a Company Superior Proposal (see page 92)

The merger agreement provides that, subject to certain exceptions, the KMG board of directors will not (i) fail to include the KMG board of directors recommendation in this proxy statement/prospectus; (ii) change, qualify, withhold, withdraw or modify the KMG board of directors recommendation (or authorize or publicly propose to do so); (iii) fail to recommend against any KMG takeover proposal that is a tender or exchange offer within ten business days of such tender or exchange offer; or (iv) adopt, approve or recommend to KMG shareholders a KMG takeover proposal (or resolve or publicly propose or announce its intention to do so).

#### Company Superior Proposals; Intervening Events (see page 92)

However, at any time before approval by KMG shareholders of the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement is obtained, the KMG board of directors may, with respect to a bona fide, unsolicited KMG takeover proposal that did not result from a material breach by KMG of its non-solicitation obligations under the merger agreement, make a KMG adverse recommendation change (following compliance with the obligation to provide an opportunity to Cabot Microelectronics to make a revised proposal as described below), if, and only if, the KMG board of directors determines in good faith, after consultation with KMG's independent financial advisors and outside legal counsel, that (i) such KMG takeover proposal constitutes a KMG superior proposal or (ii) the failure to make a KMG adverse recommendation change would be inconsistent with the KMG board of directors' fiduciary duties under applicable law.

In addition, at any time before approval by KMG shareholders of the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement is obtained, the KMG board of directors may, in response to a KMG intervening event (as defined on page 92), make a KMG adverse recommendation change (following compliance with the obligation to provide an opportunity to Cabot Microelectronics to make a revised proposal), if, and only if, the KMG board of directors determines in good faith, after consultation with KMG's independent financial advisors and outside legal counsel, that the failure to make a KMG adverse recommendation change would be inconsistent with the KMG board of directors' fiduciary duties under applicable law.

Prior to making any KMG adverse recommendation change, (i) the KMG board of directors must provide Cabot Microelectronics four business days' prior written notice of any intention to take such action (specifying, among other things, the identity of the person making a KMG takeover proposal and copies of the related agreements, if any, or the KMG intervening event, as applicable); (ii) during the four business days following the delivery of such written notice, KMG must consider in good faith any revisions or changes to the merger agreement or the merger proposed by Cabot Microelectronics; and (iii) after the four business days, the KMG board of directors must conclude, after consultation with independent financial advisors and outside legal counsel, that even if the revisions committed to in writing by Cabot Microelectronics were to be accepted by KMG, the failure to make a KMG adverse recommendation change would be inconsistent with the fiduciary duties of the KMG board of directors



### Table of Contents

and, in the case of a KMG takeover proposal, that the proposal continues to constitute a KMG superior proposal.

#### Conditions to Completion of the Merger (see page 96)

The obligations of each of KMG and Cabot Microelectronics to effect the merger are subject to the satisfaction or waiver of the following conditions:

the approval and adoption of the merger agreement by the holders of at least a majority of the shares of the KMG common stock outstanding on the record date must have been obtained;

the registration statement on Form S-4 of which this prospectus/proxy statement forms a part must have been declared effective by the SEC under the Securities Act and no stop order suspending the effectiveness of the Form S-4 may be in effect and no proceedings for that purpose may be initiated by the SEC;

no court or other governmental entity may have entered or issued an order, writ, injunction, judgment, decree, ruling, directive or award, or adopted or enacted a law, that prohibits, enjoins or makes illegal the consummation of the merger;

the waiting period (or extensions thereof) applicable to the merger under the HSR Act must have expired or been terminated;

shares of Cabot Microelectronics common stock that will be issued in connection with the merger must have been approved for listing on the Nasdaq, subject to official notice of issuance;

the other party must have performed or complied in all material respects with its covenants;

subject to certain exceptions and materiality standards provided in the merger agreement, the representations and warranties of the other party must be true and correct at and as of the closing date as though made at and as of the closing date (except if made as of an earlier date, in which case as of such date);

since the date of the merger agreement, there must not have been any fact, change, circumstance, event, occurrence, condition or development that has had or would reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a material adverse effect (as defined in the merger agreement) on the other party; and

the other party must have delivered to the party a certificate, dated as of the closing date and signed by its chief executive officer or another senior officer, certifying to the effect that the preceding three conditions have been met.

Neither Cabot Microelectronics nor KMG can be certain when, or if, the conditions to the merger will be satisfied or waived, or that the merger will be completed.

#### Termination of the Merger Agreement (see page 98)

Cabot Microelectronics and KMG may mutually agree to terminate the merger agreement before completing the merger, whether before or after the receipt of KMG shareholder approval of the merger proposal.

Either Cabot Microelectronics or KMG may terminate the merger agreement, whether before or after the receipt of KMG shareholder approval of the merger proposal:

if the merger has not been consummated by February 14, 2019 (which deadline may be extended, under certain circumstances, to May 14, 2019) (such date, as it may be extended, the "end date");

#### Table of Contents

if a governmental entity of competent jurisdiction has entered or issued a final and nonappealable order or adopted or enacted a law that permanently restrains, enjoins or makes illegal consummation of the merger;

if the approval of the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement by KMG shareholders has not been obtained upon a vote on the approval of the merger proposal at the special meeting (including any postponement or adjournment thereof); or

if the other party has materially breached any of its representations, warranties, covenants or agreements contained in the merger agreement and such breach (i) would result in the failure of the terminating party's conditions to closing and (ii) is not curable or is not cured by the earlier of the end date and the date that is 30 business days following written notice describing such breach in reasonable detail.

Cabot Microelectronics may also terminate the merger agreement, prior to receipt of approval of the merger proposal by KMG shareholders, if (i) a KMG adverse recommendation change occurs or (ii) KMG is in material and willful breach of its non-solicitation obligations or its obligations to hold the special meeting under the merger agreement and such breach is not curable or is not cured by the earlier of the end date and the date that is 30 business days following written notice describing such breach in reasonable detail.

#### Expenses and Termination Fees Relating to the Merger (see page 99)

KMG must pay Cabot Microelectronics a termination fee of \$38,765,000 if the merger agreement is terminated in certain circumstances involving an adverse recommendation change, a breach of KMG's non-solicitation obligations or obligations relating to the KMG special meeting under the merger agreement. In addition, in the event that the merger agreement is terminated because (i) the merger is not consummated prior to the End Date, (ii) the KMG shareholder approval has not been obtained at the special meeting of KMG shareholders, or (iii) KMG materially and willfully breaches any of its representations, warranties, covenants or agreements, and in any such case (a) a competing takeover proposal has been publicly announced or disclosed prior to such termination and (b) within 12 months after such termination, KMG enters into a definitive agreement with respect to, or consummates, the announced or disclosed KMG takeover proposal (in each case with references to 25% in the definition of a KMG takeover proposal being replaced by 50% for this purpose) the termination fee is also payable.

All other expenses relating to the merger will generally be paid by the party incurring or required to incur the expense; except that KMG and Cabot Microelectronics will each pay one-half of all filing fees required under the HSR Act and filing fees and printing and mailing costs for this proxy statement/prospectus.

#### Comparison of Rights of Common Stockholders of Cabot Microelectronics and Common Shareholders of KMG (see page 127)

KMG shareholders receiving shares of Cabot Microelectronics common stock in the merger will have different rights once they become stockholders of Cabot Microelectronics due to differences between the governing corporate documents and corporate state laws applicable to KMG and Cabot Microelectronics.

#### Risk Factors (see page 22)

You should consider all the information contained in or incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/prospectus in deciding how to vote for the proposals presented in this proxy statement/prospectus.

#### SELECTED HISTORICAL CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA OF CABOT MICROELECTRONICS

The following selected historical consolidated financial data of Cabot Microelectronics for each of the fiscal years during the three-year period ended September 30, 2017, and the selected historical consolidated balance sheet data as of September 30, 2017 and 2016 have been derived from Cabot Microelectronics' audited consolidated financial statements as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017 contained in Cabot Microelectronics' Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017, which is incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/prospectus. From this same report, the following selected historical consolidated financial data for each of the fiscal years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 and the selected balance sheet data as of September 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013 have been derived from Cabot Microelectronics' unaudited selected financial summary table.

The following unaudited selected financial data for Cabot Microelectronics as of June 30, 2018, and for the nine months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, are derived from Cabot Microelectronics' unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes, which are contained in Cabot Microelectronics' Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2018, which is incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/prospectus. The following unaudited selected financial data as of June 30, 2017 is derived from Cabot Microelectronics' unaudited financial statements for the quarter ended June 30, 2017, which have previously been filed with the SEC but which are not incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/prospectus. The to this proxy statement, such unaudited financial data reflect all adjustments, consisting only of normal and recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair statement of the results for those periods. The results of operations for the interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the full year or any future period.

The information set forth below is only a summary and is not necessarily indicative of the results of future operations of Cabot Microelectronics, including following completion of the merger, and you should read the following information together with Cabot Microelectronics' consolidated financial statements, the related notes and the sections titled "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" contained in Cabot Microelectronics' Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017 and in its Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarters ended December 31, 2017, March 31, 2018 and June 30, 2018, which are incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/prospectus, and in Cabot Microelectronics' other reports filed with the SEC. For more information, see the section titled "Where You Can Find More Information" beginning on page 146.

## CABOT MICROELECTRONICS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES SELECTED HISTORICAL CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA (Dollar Amounts in Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

	Nine Months Ended June 30,					Year Ended September 30,								
		2018		2017		2017		2016		2015		2014		2013
Consolidated Statement of														
Income data:														
Revenue	\$	433,394	\$	370,395	\$	507,179	\$	430,449	\$	414,097	\$	424,666	\$	433,131
Gross profit		229,759		184,079		254,129		210,202		212,231		203,093		212,116
Income before income taxes		116,688		76,659		109,372		70,438		71,197		68,594		74,220
Net income		61,825		60,450		86,952		59,849		56,146		50,751		52,578
Net income per share														
Basic earnings per share (in														
dollars per share)		2.42		2.42		3.47		2.47		2.32		2.12		2.27
Diluted earnings per share (in														
dollars per share)		2.35		2.37		3.40		2.43		2.26		2.04		2.19
Dividends per share (in dollars														
per share)		1.00		0.58		0.78		0.54						
Balance Sheet data:														
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	186,124	\$	363,902	\$	397,890	\$	287,479	\$	354,190	\$	284,155	\$	226,029
Total assets	\$	759,482	\$	801,274	\$	834,100	\$	727,230	\$	660,474	\$	601,167	\$	551,592
Long-term debt	\$		\$											